
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

  
   

   
  

 
 

              
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

       
 

  
 

   
  

      
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

     
               

  
 

   
  

 
      

        
 

 
   

 

AGENDA 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 

City Commission Chambers 
April 27, 2023 8:30 A.M. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language 
assistance (free of charge) should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Jenny Sykes, no later 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 834-8444, Email: Jennifer.Sykes@lakelandgov.net. If 
hearing impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local - (863) 834-8333 or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD-
Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-955-8770 (VOICE), 
for assistance. 

Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent 
meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon 
which the appeal is to be based. 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 

II. Review and approval of the March 23, 2023 Historic Preservation Board meeting minutes. 

III. Old Business: 

A. Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase 1: Final Report and Recommendations for 
East and South Lake Morton Historic Districts Resurvey. Staff proposes a separate 
workshop in June for HPB members to discuss report recommendations in depth, 
following public outreach to the Lake Morton Neighborhood Association and Historic 
Lakeland, Inc. 

IV. New Business: 

A. Welcome new Board Member Britney Wilson. 

B. Slate of preliminary Nominees for 2023 Historic Preservation Awards. Awards 
presentation will be May 22, 2023 at the historic Polk Theatre. Final slate of Nominees to 
be emailed to HPB after the April 30, 2023 nomination deadline. 

C. REMINDER: May 25, 2023 HPB/DRC Meetings will take place in the Lakeland Electric 
Building, Conference Rooms 1A & 1B on the first floor. 

D. Request from Historic Lakeland, Inc. Board of Directors seeking feedback from HPB on 
procedures for communicating ‘Watch List’ properties in order to better protect historic 
structures. 

V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee. 

Y:\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\04.27.23\4.27.23 HPB Agenda.docx 

http:2023\04.27.23\4.27.23
mailto:Jennifer.Sykes@lakelandgov.net


 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
        

 
 

     
        

 
   

 
    

 
             

          
 

 
      

 
    

         
 

   
 

    
 

    
  

 
   

   
 

    
 

 
    

 
    

 
   

       

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
City Commission Chambers 
Thursday, March 23, 2023 
8:30 a.m. 

(Please note: These meeting minutes comply with FS 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim 
transcript.) 

The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board met in Regular Session; Lynn Dennis, Landis Fleming, 
Michael Porter, Natalie Oldenkamp, Chris Olson and MeLynda Rinker were present. Community & 
Economic Development Department staff Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation and 
Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, and Ramona Sirianni, Deputy City Attorney, were also present. 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

Chair Chris Olson called the March 23, 2023 meeting of the Historic Preservation Board 
(“Board”) to order at 8:31 a.m. A quorum was reached, as six Board members were 
present. 

II. Review and Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Lynn Dennis motioned to approve the February 23, 2023 meeting minutes as 
presented. Mr. Landis Fleming seconded the motion. The motion passed 6—0. 

III. Old Business: NONE 

IV. New Business: 

A. Announcement: Ms. Foster stated nominations are being sought for the 2023 Historic 
Preservation Awards. Nominated projects must involve historic buildings within the City 
of Lakeland that have undergone preservation, rehabilitation, or restoration within the 
last three years, as well as new construction projects within the City’s historic districts 
that have been designed to fit compatibly into the historic character of the districts. 
Please submit all nominations via email to Emily Foster, emily.foster@lakelandgov.net. 
The Awards presentation will take place on Monday, May 22nd at the historic Polk 
Theatre. 

V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:34 a.m. 

Chair, Historic Preservation Board Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 

\\col-data\cityhall-1\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\03.23.23\HPB Minutes 3.23.23.docx 
1 



   
  

 
 

    
       

     
  

 
 

       
   

  
      

   
  

       
    

 
 

   
       

  
 

 
 

  
     
           

 
       
      

 
  

 
   

     
    

   
 

     
  

 
    

          
            

            

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Project, Phase 1 
East and South Lake Morton Historic Districts 
Summary and Recommendations 

On behalf of the City of Lakeland, PaleoWest, LLC conducted an architectural survey of historical resources in the 
designated East and South Lake Morton locally designated Historic Districts. The Project was partially funded 
through a $50,000 small matching grant from the Division of Historical Resources, Florida Department of State. 
The total cost of the project was $72,807. 

Project purpose: 
• Identify, document, and evaluate all historic resources constructed before 1974 (50 years of age) within 

the East and South Lake Morton Historic Districts, including any potential historic resources immediately 
adjacent to the Historic Districts’ boundaries. 

• Create an updated inventory of historic resources in the respective districts including building addresses, 
architectural styles, construction dates, recommended individual NRHP eligibility, and recommended 
contributing or non-contributing status. 

• Analyze results for recommendations of possible district boundary amendments, potential new 
designations, and expansion of district periods of significance. 

Project results: 
• Survey field work occurred October 10-14, 2022. 
• 1,042 historical resources were documented, with 341 newly recorded resources and 701 updated 

(previously recorded) resources. 

District Breakdown 

East Lake Morton Historic District 
• 300 properties were documented; total of 292 recommended as contributing. 
• 157 of 158 previously recorded resources are recommended as contributing. 913 Vistabula St. 

(PO03474) is now non-contributing. 
• 135 of 142 newly recorded resources are recommended as contributing. 
• One additional resource (PO09587 - Florida Citrus Mutual Building) was documented adjacent to the 

ELM boundary. 
• 35 resources previously recorded have been demolished. 

South Lake Morton Historic District 
• 739 properties were documented; total of 697 recommended as contributing. 
• 528 of 541 previously recorded resources are recommended as contributing; 13 previously recorded 

contributing resources have lost integrity due to alteration and are recommended as non-
contributing. 

• 169 of 198 newly recorded resources recommended as contributing. 
• 39 resources previously recorded have been demolished. 

The results of this Project serve as an archival record of the East Lake Morton and South Lake Morton Historic 
Districts at the time of the survey. The historical overview contained in this report provides a historical and 
developmental context for each historic district and presents context for resources constructed after the district's 
current periods of significance. This survey provides a foundation for amending the NRHP-listed East Lake Morton 



      
 

 
    

 
      

    
       

  
      

 
 

       
 

     
 

     
    

 
   

  
 

            
       

     
   

    
 

   
   

 
  

 
       

      
    

     
   

  
 

     
    

             
   

 

and South Lake Morton Historic Districts to reflect changes in the built environment. Ultimately, this work forms 
the basis for future preservation efforts in the East Lake Morton and South Lake Morton Historic Districts. 

Recommendations Specific to Project Results 

• Pursue boundary amendments to the NRHP-listed East and South Lake Morton Historic District boundaries 
to match the locally listed boundaries: 

o In the East Lake Morton Historic District, adjust the northern and northwestern boundaries to 
include the Florida Citrus Mutual Building. 

o In the South Lake Morton Historic District, adjust northeastern, northwest, and southern district 
boundaries 

• Expand the ELM period of significance from 1900–1940 to 1900–1973. (NRHP amendment) 

• Expand the SLM period of significance from 1904–1935 to 1900–1973. (NRHP amendment) 

• Amend the Criteria for which the South Lake Morton Historic District is listed in the NRHP to include 
Criteria A and B in addition to Criterion C. (NRHP amendment) 

• Add PO09587 - Florida Citrus Mutual Building to the ELM NRHP and Local designations as a contributing 
resource. Also individually eligible for NRHP listing. 

• Six documented resources (PO00113 – Sorosis Club, PO00129 – Deen House, PO03411 – Park Trammell 
Building, PO03412 – Ruthven Building, PO03414 – Women’s Club of Lakeland, and PO09587 – Florida 
Citrus Mutual Building) are individually eligible for the NRHP and eligible as contributing resources to their 
respective districts. However, as these resources are either currently contributing to their respective 
districts or could contribute with amendments, PaleoWest does not recommend the pursuit of their 
individual listing. Individual listing and contributing status in an NRHP-listed historic district offer the same 
level of recognition for historic properties and provide access to the same opportunities, such as federal 
historic tax credits. 

Additional General Recommendations 

• City staff, elected officials, and interested residents can use the information within the project report to 
promote awareness of the historical fabric of the East and South Lake Morton Historic District. Possible 
steps to disseminate the information within the report include making the report available online or in 
public spaces, such as local libraries or community centers. The City of Lakeland could also produce a 
pamphlet, signs, and/or a story map (an online and interactive educational tool) to share the findings of 
this survey with the community. 

• PaleoWest encourages the City of Lakeland to continue working with residents and advocacy groups to 
locate, identify, and assess resources for potential eligibility for listing in the NRHP, both within its existing 
historic districts and in previously unsurveyed areas. PaleoWest recommends future surveys occur in the 
area south of the current South Lake Morton Historic District boundary. 



    
      

   
 

      
     

  
 

  
    

    
  

 
 

   
    

    
 
 

• PaleoWest encourages the City to place historical markers at the location of resources recommended 
individually eligible in this survey report (with the exception of the Sorosis Club and Women’s Club of 
Lakeland, which already have historical markers installed). 

• The upkeep of historical buildings can be expensive. The City of Lakeland can work with a consultant or 
internally to gather information on tax incentives provided by the state and federal government that 
may be able to ease the financial burden associated with preservation efforts. 

• It is often the goal for preservation to go hand in hand with sustainability. Most historical buildings are 
designed for their environment, making them energy efficient. Rehabilitating and adaptively reusing 
buildings is one way to revitalize, restore, or upcycle an existing building. PaleoWest encourages the City 
of Lakeland to promote the use of historic tax credits and to embrace historical buildings as the greenest 
development option. 

• PaleoWest recommends addressing disaster preparedness in a preservation planning capacity. Hurricanes 
pose a regular threat to historical resources in Florida. It is recommended that a disaster preparedness 
plan be developed for the historic resources of the City of Lakeland. 



 

          

 

                         

                       

            

Figure 5-13. Map of Project survey areas and their respective NRHP-listed Historic District boundaries on aerial photography. PaleoWest recommends that the boundary of the 

NRHP-listed East Lake Morton Residential district be expanded to match that of the locally designated northern boundary. Further, PaleoWest recommends the locally designated 

district western boundary be expanded to match that of the NRHP-listed district. 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase I, Polk County, Florida | 103 



 

          

 

                       

         

Figure 5-10. Aerial results map depicting resources contributing within the existing East Lake Morton Historic District period of significance and resources potentially contributing 

within an expanded period of significance ending in 1973. 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase I, Polk County, Florida | 101 



 

          

 

                    Figure 5-9. Aerial results map depicting the build date of resources surveyed in the East Lake Morton Historic District. 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase I, Polk County, Florida | 98 



 

          

 

                       

        

Figure 5-17. Aerial results map depicting resources contributing within the existing South Lake Morton Historic District period of significance and resources potentially contributing 

within an expanded period of significance ending in 1973. 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase I, Polk County, Florida | 112 



 

          

 

                  Figure 5-16. Aerial results map depicting the build date of resources surveyed in the South Lake Morton Historic District. 

Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase I, Polk County, Florida | 110 





 

 
 

 
  

 
        

   
     

   

 
       

  

   

     

 

  

  

     
  

    
          

 

      
         

 

AGENDA 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

April 27, 2023 
immediately following the Historic Preservation Board Meeting 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language assistance (free of charge) 
should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Jenny Sykes, no later than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 
834-8444, Email: Jennifer.Sykes@lakelandgov.net. If hearing impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local - (863) 
834-8333 or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD-Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-
955-8770 (VOICE), for assistance. 

Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent meeting will need 
a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 

II. Review and approval of the March 23, 2023 Design Review Committee meeting minutes. 

III. Review Certificates of Review administratively approved since the previous meeting. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Assistant City Attorney. 

B. HPB23-066 – 601 E. Charles Street – Final Approval requested for the installation of a detached garage 
on the subject property. Owner/Applicant: Ms. Lynn McCoy. 

C. HPB23-076 – 957 Cumberland Street – Final Approval requested for the new construction of a two-story 
multi-family building on the subject property. Owner: Mr. Andrew Ericson. Applicant: Mr. Everett Atwell, 
Manager, Tiggertink, LLC. 

D. HPB23-077 – 716 Mississippi Avenue – Final Approval requested for the demolition of the house on the 
subject property and the construction of a new single-family house. Owner/Applicant: Wes and Michelle 
Graham. 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment. 

Y:\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2023\04.27.23\4.27.23 DRC Agenda.docx 

http:2023\04.27.23\4.27.23
mailto:Jennifer.Sykes@lakelandgov.net


 

 
 

  
 

    
 

               
     
  

  
 

   

            
 

    

       
  

    

  
       

      
 

  

      

             
   
  

   
  

   
     

 
        

  
  

      
         

             
   

   
  

 
    

     

MINUTES 

DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 
City Commission Chambers 

Thursday, March 23, 2023 

(Note: These meeting minutes comply with F.S. 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim transcript.) 

The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board’s Design Review Committee, met in Regular Session; Lynn 
Dennis, Landis Fleming, Natalie Oldenkamp, Chris Olson, Michael Porter and MeLynda Rinker were 
present. Community & Economic Development Department staff Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic 
Preservation, Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, and Ramona Sirianni, Deputy City Attorney, were also 
present. 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

The meeting was called to order by Chair MeLynda Rinker at 8:34 a.m. The Committee roll call was 
performed and a quorum was present. 

II. Review and Approval of the Previous Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Lynn Dennis motioned to approve the February 23, 2023 meeting minutes. Mr. Chris Olson seconded 
the motion. The motion passed 6—0. 

III. Review of Certificates of Review administratively approved. 

A list of twenty (20) administratively approved Certificate of Review projects covering the period 2/18/23-
3/15/23 was included with the agenda packet. In response to Mr. Chris Olson, Ms. Emily Foster stated 
she would confirm whether 735 E. Main Street was a contributing or non-contributing building, due to 
conflicting status in this report. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Deputy City Attorney Ramona Sirianni. 

B. HPB23-032 – 801 E. Main Street – Final Approval requested for the installation of an 
illuminated wall sign on the principal building of the subject property. Owner: Ten Cap 
Partners LLC. Applicant: Mr. Roger Snyder and Mr. Ryan Birt, Dixie Signs Inc. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property is located at the southeast 
corner of E. Main Street and S. Lake Avenue, and consists of a quarter-acre parcel that is located 
within Sub-District 6 of the Garden District SPI (Special Public Interest) zoning district, as well as 
the Downtown Lakeland Community Redevelopment Area. The property contains a masonry 
vernacular building, built in 1960, that originally functioned as a full-service gas station and repair 
garage. The existing building is considered noncontributing to the East Lake Morton Historic 
District. Undergoing renovations in 2014, this property and building has since been utilized for 
retail, entertainment, and eatery uses under the business name of The Poor Porker. A new 
business was established on the subject property in 2022 under the “Unfiltered Lakeland” name. 
This request proposes to install an internally lighted wall sign, 52.56 square feet (29” X 21.75’) in 
size, on the north elevation of the building on the subject property. The sign will consist of white 
acrylic letter faces covered in digitally printed and laminated vinyl in a burnt orange color, along 
with a black trim cap, and will state the name of the business. White LEDs will illuminate the sign 
internally.  As the Historic Preservation Board’s Design Review Committee is tasked with approval 
of internally-lighted signs, this request was referred by staff to the Committee for review. 



    

 

  
   

  
        

 
     

      
    

         
  

 
     

 

     
    

   

       
  

      
   

  

    
 

    
  

       
   

     
      

       
 

  
      

   
    

    

   
    
   

 
  
    
  

    
  

   

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Chapter 5 of the Dixieland CRA 
Commercial Corridor Design Guidelines. The Design Review Committee previously approved an 
exposed neon sign on the west elevation wall for the Poor Porker. Staff finds that the design of 
the proposed sign is acceptable under the Dixieland Guidelines, and the placement and scale of 
the sign on the upper portion of the building’s north elevation wall is appropriate. The individual 
letter internal lighting source for this sign is found appropriate, as this type of illuminated sign was 
common on many Mid-Century Modern buildings and is also found in the East Main Street District, 
located near the subject property east of Bartow Road (U.S. 98). However, the size of the sign is 
slightly too large according to the Dixieland Guidelines and must be reduced to no more than 
48.66 square feet, based on the calculation provided in sub-section 2.a. Ms. Foster stated Staff 
recommends final approval of the request with the following condition to be reviewed and 
approved by staff prior to permitting: 1) Wall sign size must be reduced to a maximum of 48.66 
square feet. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Ms. Geanie Folder 
and Mr. Ryan Birt were present in support of the request. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff. (L. 
Dennis/C. Olson, 6—0) 

C. HPB23-040 – 727 Jefferson Avenue – Final Approval requested for the new construction 
of a covered stoop onto the front elevation of the house on the subject property. 
Owner/Applicant: John and Valerie Tutton. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property is an interior lot consisting 
of 0.22 acres in the Biltmore-Cumberland Historic District. On the property is a one-story, frame 
vernacular house built circa 1946, which is a contributing building in the Biltmore-Cumberland 
Historic District. The one-story wood frame house features a side-gabled roof with a minimal front 
stoop, formerly covered by an awning that was destroyed by Hurricane Ian, and an attached 
carport. The house is clad in aluminum siding and has several replacement windows. The request 
proposes to remove the existing roof overhang and steps at the entrance on the home’s front 
elevation and add a covered front stoop measuring 3’-4” deep by 10’-8” wide (35.6 SF). The new 
stoop will feature a gable-front appearance, with a 4/12 roof pitch, supported by tapered columns 
on brick plinths. The stoop will have a raised foundation covered in cementitious finish and 
concrete steps. The Applicant’s reason for this request is threefold: to replace the damaged 
awning and provide additional cover; to provide for a safer landing for ingress/egress; and to 
resolve front door leaks in the future. Materials to be used in the porch addition are as follows: 

• CMU foundation clad in cementitious finish and brick at base of columns. 
• The gable end of the stoop will be covered in vinyl siding to match the house. 
• Columns will consist of 4” X 4” pressure treated wood posts clad in fiberglass or PVC 

wrap. 
• Steps will consist of formed and poured concrete. 
• Fascia and soffit to be used will match that of the house. 
• Roofing shingles to match house. 

Ms. Foster stated the site plan submitted by the Applicant shows building setbacks for the 
proposed new stoop that comply with the City’s Land Development Code, Urban Form Standards. 
The request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation #2, #9, #10 and 

Page 2 



    

     
   

  
   

  
             

         
  

  
 

  
         

   
   

 

 

    
 

   
 

   
     

 

  

     
       

 

             
  

 

 
   

   
          

      
           

        
 

  
   
  

          
  

   
             

   
   

Chapter 4 and Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. The Biltmore-
Cumberland Historic District exhibits a variety of architectural styles, including Colonial Revival, 
Tudor Revival, Minimal Traditional, Craftsman Bungalow, Mediterranean Revival, and Frame and 
Masonry Vernacular. Entrance features for houses in this area are guided typically by the style 
and size of a house, and both minimal stoops and modest porches exist. While additions to the 
front of a contributing house are typically not recommended by the Design Guidelines, given the 
minimal traditional design of the subject house, the small footprint and simple design of the 
proposed stoop, as well as reversibility of this alteration without damaging historic building 
material, staff finds the proposed front stoop addition to be consistent with the Standards. The 
proposed stoop is compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and will not adversely affect the 
integrity of the Biltmore-Cumberland Historic District. For consistency with the Design Guidelines, 
staff recommends that fiber-cement lapped siding is used in the gable of the stoop, as vinyl and 
aluminum siding is prohibited. Additionally, staff recommends the use of tapered columns in the 
style and proportion of the columns supporting the porte cochere, in order to complement an 
existing architectural feature. 

Ms. Foster stated Staff recommends final approval of the request with the following conditions, to 
be reviewed and approved by staff prior to permitting: 

1. Use fiber-cement lapped siding with an exposure width similar to the lapped siding on the 
house in the stoop gable. 

2. Use tapered columns in the style and proportion of the columns supporting the porte 
cochere for the stoop columns. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Leon 
Roubekas with Green Construction Services was present in support of the request. 

Discussion ensued. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff and an 
additional condition requiring straight eave returns to be used on the gable of the stoop. 
(L. Dennis/N. Oldenkamp, 6—0) 

D. HPB23-049 – 506 W. Park Street – Final Approval requested for the major rehabilitation 
of the single-family residence on the subject property. Owner: Merlin Properties of Central 
Florida. Applicant: Ms. Yelithza Paramo, Paramount Building. 

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property property is a platted lot in 
the Dixieland Historic District, which consists of 0.33 acres and has access to an improved alley 
at the rear of the lot. On the property are two buildings: a one-story single-family residence built 
circa 1960; and a two-story, single-family residence built circa 1925. Both houses are built in the 
Frame Vernacular architectural style and are non-contributing buildings in the Historic District. 
This request involves the two-story house, which has a side gabled roof with triangular gable 
vents, a two-story shed roofed porch, and wood lap siding. It is believed that the subject building 
was an accessory structure historically, but from a land use standpoint, this building is legally non-
conforming as a single-family residence. As the structure was viewed as an accessory structure, 
staff was able to review and approve demolition of this building, which approval occurred in August 
2020. The Applicant decided to rehabilitate the structure instead of demolishing it, and therefore, 
the interior of the structure has been gutted in preparation for rehabilitation work, and all windows 
and doors have been removed. As the subject building has not been occupied or maintained for 
quite some time, the Applicant requests to undertake a major rehabilitation and update all 
mechanical systems. Exterior work subject to design review includes the repair of the foundation 

Page 3 



    

 
 

   

  
   
  
  
  
  
  

            
 
 

    

    
     

    

        
 

     
          
   

 
   

  
   

  
   

 
    

   

   
  

   
  

   
  

 
  

    
      

  

     
 

         
   

   

and frame structure; installation of new siding, trim, casing, and corner boards; installation of new 
windows and doors; installation of new porch/balcony columns; and installation of new roofing, 
fascia, and soffit. Materials proposed for this request include: 

• Concrete footer foundation; 
• Hardie board lap siding, trim, and casing; 
• Vinyl single-hung sash windows; 
• Wood-edge steel door with an upper lite; 
• Asphalt shingle roof; 
• Hardie fascia and vented soffit; and 
• Porch/Balcony will have pressure-treated wood columns. 

The footprint of the house will remain the same as existing, which is legally nonconforming in 
respect to building setbacks. A new concrete slab is proposed to be constructed along the east 
elevation of the house, and a 20 feet wide parking area off of the alley, with a sidewalk connecting 
this feature to the front elevation of the house, is also proposed. 

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
#9, #10 and Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. In evaluating the request 
with the Standards and Design Guidelines, the following findings have been made by staff: 

1. The repair work proposed for the foundation and structure with in-kind materials is 
appropriate and consistent with the Standards and Design Guidelines. 

2. The replacement siding, trim, casing, roofing, fascia, and soffit with Hardie materials are 
acceptable according to the Design Guidelines. Staff recommends that the existing 
triangular gable vents that have 90-degree latticework be replicated in the gables of the 
east and west elevations. 

3. Given that all existing doors and windows have been removed, the proposed replacement 
windows and doors are consistent in material and type with respect to the Standards and 
Design Guidelines, as well as the Frame Vernacular architectural style of the subject 
building. 

4. The design and materials of the porch and balcony are consistent with the Design 
Guidelines and Frame Vernacular architectural style. 

5. The location of a paved, 20 feet wide parking area at the rear of the property with access 
from the existing alley is appropriate and consistent with the Design Guidelines. 

Ms. Foster stated Final Approval of the request with the following conditions, to be reviewed and 
approved at staff level prior to permitting: 

1. Replicate the design of the original triangular gable vents, including 90-degree latticework, 
in the gables of the east and west elevations. 

2. Windows shall be recessed to provide a shadow line and not installed flush to the exterior 
wall surface; windows also must include historically appropriate trim, including header, sill, 
and apron. 

3. Hardie lap siding shall have an exposure of 6 inches or less. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Diego Paramo 
with Paramount Building was present in support of the request. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with the conditions recommended by staff. (L. 
Dennis/N. Oldenkamp, 6—0) 

E. HPB23-050 – 914 S. Missouri Avenue – Final Approval requested for the installation of 
a new roof system on the two-story structure on the subject property. Owner: Mr. Gary 
Hyde. Applicant: Mr. Jordan Napoles, Mark Brown Construction Inc. 

Page 4 



    

 
 

     
     

 
 

      
   

    
    

            
 

   
     

   

 
        

   
      

            
        

    
   

  
 

  
        

 
       

   
  

  

    
     

  
  

  
  

   
  

 
   

  
     

   
 

    

     
   

Chair Rinker introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property consists of two interior 
lots and is 0.28 acres in area; an improved alley exists at the rear of this property. A two-story, 
multi-family building in the Tudor Revival architectural style is located on this property, which was 
built circa 1932 and is considered a contributing building within the Dixieland Historic District. This 
building consists of wood frame construction with a gable roof with gabled dormers, brick and 
wood shingle wall cladding, and 6-lite casement windows. The building has undergone several 
substantial additions and modifications since its original construction. A second two-story house 
is also located on the subject property and addressed as 912 S. Missouri Avenue; this building is 
occupied as a residence, which is known as the “cottage.” From approximately the mid-1930s 
until 1974, the subject property served as the Child’s Garden of Learning, which was a private 
elementary school. The cottage served as classrooms for the school, while the subject building 
served as the primary residence of Matthew and Genevieve Mitchell; Mrs. Mitchell was the 
primary teacher at the school. Mr. Mitchell was a builder and made several modifications to the 
subject building in the 1950s. The former owner purchased the subject property in 1989, at which 
time the building was converted into three apartment units. On September 3, 2021, the building 
experienced a substantial fire, which was caused by an electrical malfunction. Due to the extent 
of the fire damage and threat to public safety in keeping the building secured, the previous owner 
received approval from the Design Review Committee to demolish this structure, in December 
2021. However, building has not been demolished, and the new owner, who purchased the 
property in November 2022, wishes to repair the structure. The Applicant’s request involves 
constructing a new roof in a gabled design that will be different from the existing roof form, which 
exhibits several additions. The fire burned a hole through the existing roof deck and damaged the 
original rafters of the second story roof structure. The existing roof structure is composed of a 
mixture of gables with additions made over time consisting of a shed roof, low pitched roof, and 
mono-sloping sections. The fire was contained inside of a wall cavity and as a result, most of the 
floor joists, sub-floor, and exterior walls appear satisfactory in condition. The proposed project 
would consist of demolishing the interior of the second story, bracing exterior walls, removing the 
deficient roof structure, installing pre-engineered roof trusses based on the proposed new roof 
design, and installing a standing seam metal roof system with red-colored panels. The new roof 
design will reflect a streamlined gabled profile with an 8/12 pitch incorporating the additions of the 
existing complex roofline. 

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
#9, #10 and Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. Staff finds that the 
changes to the roofline caused by several building additions since the 1950s have not acquired 
historic significance on their own, as they represent common construction methods and design. 
While the entire roofing system is proposed to be replaced, the new gabled profile with a steep 
8/12 pitch is compatible with this building and its original cross-gabled roof structure, as well as 
consistent with the Standards and Design Guidelines, as the building reflects mostly Tudor 
Revival architectural elements. However, to be consistent with the Design Guidelines regarding 
replacement roofing materials, standing seam and 5V crimp metal roofing is not appropriate for 
the Tudor Revival style, and a shingle style roofing material should be used instead. 

Ms. Foster stated Staff recommends final approval of the request as submitted, with the following 
conditions, to be reviewed and approved by staff prior to permitting: 

1. Use straight eaves or classic eave returns instead of the “pork chop” style eave returns 
shown in the architectural plans. 

2. Use shingle roofing (can be metal shingles) instead of standing seam metal roofing. 

Chair Rinker asked if the Applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Jordan 
Napoles with Mark Brown Construction was present in support of the request. Mr. Napoles stated 

Page 5 



    

    
   

 

  

    
  

  
 

     

 

              
     

 

the homeowner would prefer to use a standing seam metal roof for the majority of the roof in order 
to maximize his investment. 

Discussion ensued. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with only the first condition recommended by staff 
and removing condition #2. (L. Fleming/L. Dennis, 6—0) 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:29 a.m. 

Chair, Design Review Committee Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 

Page 6 



 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 3/16/2023 and 4/13/2023 

1. 425 HUNTER ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Installation of a 6 ft. tall wood privacy 
fence enclosing the rear yard of the subject property, replacing the previously installed 
8 ft. tall wood privacy fence. 
Subject to the following conditions: Fence must be setback by 3 feet from the edge of 
pavement of Lakeside Avenue (alley). (HPB23-051) 

2. 1015 SIKES BL (Contributing Building) - Replacing two faces of an existing ground sign 
with two 3mm ACM face overlays matching the existing sign faces (28" tall by 52" 
wide). 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-056) 

3. 720 ANGELINA LN (Non-Contributing Building) - Replacement of all existing metal 
windows and doors on building with Ply Gem vinyl single-hung windows (FL#14039-R7) 
and JELD-WEN (FL# 11136.3) Contours Steel, steel edge doors. Replacement of sections 
of T1-11 siding with LP Building Solutions Siding (FL#9190). 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. FOR WINDOWS WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES, MUNTINS (GRIDS/GRILLES) SHALL 
BE DIMENSIONAL AND MOUNTED TO THE EXTERIOR OF THE GLAZING (GLASS) WITH A 
MINIMUM SURFACE RELIEF OF A ¼ INCH. MUNTINS “SANDWICHED” BETWEEN 
DOUBLE-PANED GLAZING SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED, EXCEPT WHEN INSTALLED 
BENEATH EXTERIOR-MOUNTED MUNTINS. 
4. ALL PAIRED OR GROUPED WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A DIVIDING 
MULLION OF AT LEAST 3 INCHES IN WIDTH BETWEEN ADJOINING WINDOWS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-057) 

4/13/2023 9:32:18 AM 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 3/16/2023 and 4/13/2023 

4. 219 RIGGINS ST (Contributing Building) - Temporary metal accessibility ramp to be 
placed at front elevation/entrance of home on subject property until May 15, 2023. 
Subject to the following conditions: Temporary ramp must be removed by May 15, 
2023. (HPB23-058) 

5. 832 MISSISSIPPI AV (Contributing Building) - Installation of a 6 ft. wood privacy fence at 
the rear of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-059) 

6. 1023 PENNSYLVANIA AV (Contributing Building) - Demolition of a detached garage 
structure on the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-060) 

7. 315 RIGGINS ST (Contributing Building) - Installation of a 6' X 10' X 6'-11 1/8" tall gable 
roof shed in the rear yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-061) 

8. 409 HUNTER ST (Contributing Building) - Replacing existing fence with 6 ft. tall wood 
fence, in same footprint as existing fence. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-062) 

9. 1704 COMANCHE TR (Non-Contributing Building) - Install 50 linear feet of 36" high 
ornamental aluminum fence on top of 12" brick wall, with 4 ft. tall brick columns at 
southwest side of subject property's yard, replacing a wood picket fence. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-063) 

4/13/2023 9:32:18 AM 



 

 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 3/16/2023 and 4/13/2023 

10. 322 S INDIANA AV (Contributing Building) - Replacement of all windows in the house on 
the subject property, which are double-hung sash wood windows with a one-over-one 
lite configuration and aluminum awning windows, with vinyl single-hung sash windows 
with a one-over-one lite configuration (FL#22284). Historic windows are being replaced 
due to severe deterioration and rot. 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. ALL PAIRED OR GROUPED WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A DIVIDING 
MULLION OF AT LEAST 3 INCHES IN WIDTH BETWEEN ADJOINING WINDOWS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-065) 

11. 514 HUNTER ST (Non-Contributing Building) - At the deck area to the right of the 
original front porch, remove non-historic shed roof cover, supports, and handrail. 
Replace existing wood steps at side of deck with a larger wood stair facing the street. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-067) 

12. 514 HUNTER ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Demolition of small, non-historic and 
unpermitted building addition at the rear of the principal house on the subject dwelling. 
Replace/repair siding where addition was attached to house with siding similar to the 
asbestos siding on the house. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-069) 

13. 1518 S DAKOTA AV (Contributing Building) - Installation of 187 linear feet of 6 ft. tall 
wood board-on-board fence with two gates in the rear yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-071) 

4/13/2023 9:32:18 AM 



 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 3/16/2023 and 4/13/2023 

14. 518 W PATTERSON ST (Contributing Building) - Installation of a 4 ft. tall wood stockade 
fence and 6 ft. tall wood stockade fence at the side elevations of the house on the 
subject property as well as a 6 ft. tall wood stockade fence along the rear property line, 
maintaining a 3 ft. setback from the alley. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-072) 

15. 46 LAKE MORTON DR (Contributing Building) - Installation of a 4 ft. tall black aluminum 
fence on top of 1 ft. tall retaining wall. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-073) 

16. 638 CORNELIA AV (Non-Contributing Building) - Replace 1 single unit and 1 triple unit 
aluminum windows, size for size, with ViWinTech Windows & Doors Single Hung 
Windows. 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. FOR WINDOWS WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES, MUNTINS (GRIDS/GRILLES) SHALL 
BE DIMENSIONAL AND MOUNTED TO THE EXTERIOR OF THE GLAZING (GLASS) WITH A 
MINIMUM SURFACE RELIEF OF A ¼ INCH. MUNTINS “SANDWICHED” BETWEEN 
DOUBLE-PANED GLAZING SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED, EXCEPT WHEN INSTALLED 
BENEATH EXTERIOR-MOUNTED MUNTINS. 
4. ALL PAIRED OR GROUPED WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A DIVIDING 
MULLION OF AT LEAST 3 INCHES IN WIDTH BETWEEN ADJOINING WINDOWS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-074) 

4/13/2023 9:32:18 AM 



 

 

 

 

 

Certificates of Review Administratively Approved 
Between 3/16/2023 and 4/13/2023 

17. 910 OAKHILL ST (Contributing Building) - Replace 4 sets of jalousie windows with 
Simonton vinyl single-hung sash windows (FL#5414.4), matching the existing window 
opening size. WINDOWS MUST NOT HAVE GRIDS. 
Subject to the following conditions: 1. ALL REPLACEMENT WINDOWS MUST MATCH 
ORIGINAL WINDOW/ WINDOW OPENING SIZE. 
2. ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE RECESSED FROM THE EXTERIOR WALL FACE TO THE 
EXTERIOR WINDOW GLASS TO PROVIDE A SHADOW LINE. FLUSH-MOUNTED 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS ARE NOT PERMITTED. BOX OR BLOCK FRAMED WINDOWS 
ARE RECOMMENDED. FIN/FLANGE TYPE WINDOWS ARE NOT RECOMMENDED. 
3. WINDOWS SHALL NOT HAVE GRIDS OR MUNTINS. 
4. ALL PAIRED OR GROUPED WINDOWS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A DIVIDING 
MULLION OF AT LEAST 3 INCHES IN WIDTH BETWEEN ADJOINING WINDOWS. 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE APPLICANT TO ENSURE THAT THE REPLACEMENT 
WINDOWS INSTALLED ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESIGN AND METHOD OF 
INSTALLATION STATED ON THE CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW.  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
THESE CONDITIONS WILL RESULT IN DISAPPROVAL OF THE BUILDING PERMIT FINAL 
INSPECTION AND WILL REQUIRE COMPLIANT WINDOWS TO BE INSTALLED REGARDLESS 
OF FINANCIAL IMPACT TO THE APPLICANT. ACCEPTANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR 
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS CONSTITUTES APPLICANT’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THESE 
CONDITIONS. 

WINDOW PRODUCTS STATED ON THE APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE 
SUBSITUTED OR REPLACED WITH A PRODUCT FROM A DIFFERENT MANUFACTUER, OR 
A DIFFERENT MODEL NUMBER FROM THE SAME MANUFACTURER, WITHOUT STAFF 
APPROVAL. (HPB23-075) 

18. 514 HUNTER ST (Non-Contributing Building) - Construction of a small accessory 
structure in the rear yard of the subject property, behind house, to enclose a water 
heater. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-078) 

19. 514 HUNTER ST ( Building) - Installation of a 6 ft. wood privacy fence enclosing the rear 
yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-079) 

20. 307 PUEBLO TR (Contributing Building) - Construction of a 2 ft. tall CMU masonry 
retaining wall in the front yard and 4 ft. tall CMU masonry retaining wall in the street 
side yard of the subject property. 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-080) 

21. 301 FRANK LLOYD WRIGHT WY (Contributing Building) - Replacement of existing asphalt 
roof shingles with Armour Loc 26 Ga. flat panel standing seam metal roofing 
(FL#24397.5; 24397-R8). 
Subject to the following conditions:  (HPB23-081) 

4/13/2023 9:32:18 AM 



 

 
 

 
 

  
  

    
    
     

 
  

 
 
 
    

 

 
 

  

    
      

  

   
             

       
        

     
      

 

 

      
   

 

   

  
   

    
     

  
     

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
April 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-066 
Owner/Applicant Ms. Lynn McCoy 

Address; Historic Name 601 E. Charles Street; N/A 
Project Type Accessory Structure larger than 300 square feet 

Historic District; FMSF# South Lake Morton Historic District / N/A 
Future Land Use; Zoning; 

Context District; SPI 
RA-4; Residential Medium; 
Urban Neighborhood; South Lake Morton SPI 

Existing Use Residential 
Adjacent Properties Residential 
Previous Approvals Replace 1 window; reopen 1 window opening, 2/7/22 (HPB22-025) 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests Final Approval to construct a new accessory structure larger than 300 square feet on the 
subject property. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property consists of an interior lot of record (Dixieland Subdivision, Block 9, Lot 5) with a total area of 
0.17 acres, and contains a one-story Bungalow house built circa 1925, which is a non-contributing building in the 
South Lake Morton Historic District. 

The Applicant requests to build a new accessory structure for use as a detached garage. The size of the garage is 
proposed to be 16 feet by 25 feet (400 square feet) with a mean height of 12.42 feet, and will be located in the 
rear yard, in the southwest corner of the subject property. The structure will be a pre-manufactured structure 
with a 2:12 pitch gable roof with dimensional shingles, as well as LP SmartSide vertical siding. The garage will also 
feature a vinyl window, a metal garage door, and a metal 9-lite entry door. The site plan submitted with the 
Application shows accessory building setback dimensions that meet the Land Development Code’s Urban Form 
Standards. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land Development 
Code, Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 

The following Standards apply to this project: 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be 
differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and 
proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment. 

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner 
that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment 
would be unimpaired. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\601 e. charles street (hpb23-066)\601 e. charles street staff report.docx Page 1 



 

    
   

 

  
  

   

  

  
 

  
 
    

    
   

    

 

    
      

      

     
      

     
    

 

 

 

     
  

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 4: Historical Development Patterns and New Construction 

Sub-Chapter 4.9.2: Secondary Structures 
• Accessory structures that complement the architectural character of the principal house through the use 

of similar materials and simplified architectural elements. 
• Accessory structures should be placed towards the rear of the property to minimize visibility from the 

street. Use of landscape screening and/or privacy fencing to reduce visibility of storage sheds and other 
utilitarian-designed outbuildings is recommended. 

• Detached accessory structures that are excessively large and compete with the scale, massing, or height 
of the primary structure are not acceptable. 

• Secondary structures with a gambrel or “barn style” roof form are not acceptable. 

Sub-Chapter 4.10: Garages, Carports, and Porte Cocheres 
• Detached garages and carports placed behind the front elevation of a principal historic structure, except 

for Ranch style houses, which may have an attached garage. 
• Garages and carports accessed from the rear or side alley. 
• Garages that are visibly subordinate to the principal historic structure in terms of their massing, form, 

and height. 
• Garages and carports that are related to the period of construction of the principal building on the lot 

through the use of complementary materials and simplified architectural details. 
• Garage doors in proportions and materials similar to those traditionally found in the historic districts. 

ANALYSIS: 

In evaluating the request with the Standards, staff finds that the proposed detached garage does not disturb the 
spatial relationships of the principal house, and its setting and integrity is maintained. New but similar materials 
will be used on the garage, which will be complementary in nature to the design of the house. 

In evaluating the request with the Design Guidelines, staff finds the materials of the proposed detached garage 
are consistent with the Design Guidelines. Staff finds the style of the garage to be simple and compatible in design 
and subordinate to the subject house, as well as placed appropriately at the rear of the subject property. Finally, 
the setbacks of the detached garage meet the requirements of the Land Development Code for accessory 
structures. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Final Approval of the request as submitted. 

Report prepared by: Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\601 e. charles street (hpb23-066)\601 e. charles street staff report.docx Page 2 





	
 	 		  	
			

			 		 				 � � �� � �   � �� 	� �� �� �� � � ��� ��� � � ̆ ̌ ̇̂ ̋ ̨° ̃ !̇  ̃ !̂" #̨$ ̃ 
% & ' ()*+ ,* -* )-+ * (. /01 + 

2 3 4 54 6 7896 : ;< = > ? @< A > : B < ;@CD EF G HI J I K LM NOHO P L QRS I T S HL UL VWI I H 







   
 

 
 

 
  

 
  
     
  
   
     
 
 

 
 

  
  
  

 

 
 

     
 

 
   

 

        
        

    
    

   
 

  
   

 
     

     
    

    
 

  
    

   
 

     
 

   
   

  
    

  
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
April 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-076 
Project Type Final Approval for New Multi-Family Construction 

Property Address 957 Cumberland Street 
Historic District; FMSF# South Lake Morton Historic District; N/A 

Owner/Applicant Mr. Andrew Ericson / Mr. Everett Atwell, Manager, Tiggertink, LLC 
Zoning; Context District; 

Future Land Use; SPI 
MF-12; Urban Neighborhood 
Residential Medium; South Lake Morton SPI 

Existing Use Vacant 
Adjacent Properties Residential, Institutional 
Previous Approvals N/A 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests Final Approval for the new construction of a two-story, multi-family residential building on 
the subject property. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property is located in the South Lake Morton Historic District and consists of two platted lots of record 
(Oakhurst Addition, Block B, Lots 15 and 16) with a total area of 0.30 acres, which are vacant. These lots are 
currently combined with three lots immediately adjacent to the east of the subject property; the Applicant intends 
to legally split the subject property from the combined parcel (Parcel ID 24-28-19-219000-002120). The property 
is zoned for multi-family use, at 12 dwelling units per acre. 

The request proposes to construct a new two-story building containing four separate townhouse (single-family 
attached) units. The units vary in living area size from 1,666 square feet to 1,782 square feet. Aesthetically, the 
building will feature a neo-traditional style reflecting Craftsman architectural elements, including a hipped and 
gabled roofline, exposed rafter tails, decorative knee brackets, porches supported by pairs of tapered columns, 
windows with simulated divided lite upper sashes, and glazed front doors with transoms. Each unit will have a 
different exterior paint color palette, and similar but varied architectural features. Additionally, each unit will have 
an elevated back porch and small fenced backyard area. Materials for the proposed building will consist of: 

Scope Material 
Foundation Painted, sand finish cementitious coating over concrete stem wall 
Exterior Cladding Painted fiber cement lap siding with a 4” reveal, with fiber cement staggered 

shingle siding in the gables 
Trim Painted fiber cement trim (3.5” doors/windows and 5.5” corner boards); painted 

fiber cement mullions 
Windows White vinyl single-hung sash and fixed 
Doors Glazed painted smooth vinyl 
Porch Features Brick veneer porch foundation and column bases; concrete floor; painted fiber 

cement columns; 40” high painted wood railings; cast-in-place concrete steps. 
Roof Dimensional asphalt shingles; painted wood rafter tails; painted wood knee 

brackets 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\957 cumberland street (hpb23-076)\957 cumberland street staff report.docx Page 1 



   
 

    
          

  
   

   
 

 

      
     

     
      

  
 

 
 

      
    

       
     

 

    
 

    
      

      
  

 

  
    

 
 

     
   

 

 
   

     
  

   
  

    
  

    
     

  
    

  
     

   

Fascia/Exposed eave Painted wood fascia; painted beadboard fiber cement panel on eave 
Exterior Paint Colors Sherwin Williams paints. Body: Krypton SW6247; Evergreen Fog SW 9130; Diverse 

Beige SW6079; Argos SW7065. Trim: Ethereal White SW6182. Accent: Fawn 
Brindle SW7640 (shingles); Soft Sage SW9647 (Doors, Unit 1 & 3) Let it Rain 
SW9152 (Doors, Unit 2 & 4); Carriage Door SW7594 (Brackets); Downing Slate 
SW2819 (Porch 

The site plan for the proposed project includes a varied front setback of approximately 13 feet from the property 
line, with interior side and rear setbacks that meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. Eight paved 
parking spaces are provided at the rear of the subject property, accessible from a 12 feet wide driveway 
connecting to Cumberland Street on the east side of the property. An enclosure for garbage and recycling bins is 
also proposed at the rear of the property. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land Development 
Code (“LDC”), Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. The Garden District Special Public Interest District 
regulations (“Garden District Regulations”) also apply to this project. 

The following Standards apply to this project: 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, 
features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be differentiated from the 
old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to 
protect the integrity of the property and its environment. 

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, 
if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 4: Historical Development Patterns and New Construction 

Sub-Chapter 4.6: New Residential Construction and Infill Development 
• Ensure that Historic Buildings Remain the Central Focus: Carefully consider the historic context of 

the block and surrounding environment or historic district when designing a new structure. New 
construction should be distinguishable from historic structures without detracting from them. 

• False Historicism/Conjectural History is Discouraged: Attempting to create an exact replica of 
historic styles for new construction blurs the distinction between old and new buildings and makes 
the architectural evolution of the historic district more difficult to interpret. While new construction 
within historic districts does not need to mirror or replicate historic features, new structures should 
not be so dissimilar as to distract from or diminish the historic interpretation of the district. 

• Contemporary Interpretations of Traditional Designs and Details May be Considered: When applied 
to a compatible building form, contemporary materials and architectural details can increase energy 
efficiency and provide visual interest while helping to convey the fact that the building is new. 

• Materials should respect adjacent historic buildings. 
• Details and Ornamentation: a new building should consider the amount, location and elaborateness 

of details and ornamentation on existing neighboring buildings in its design. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\957 cumberland street (hpb23-076)\957 cumberland street staff report.docx Page 2 



   
 

    
    

  
  

   
  

   
    

  
   

  
  

  
     

    
    

     
      

   
     
      

 
  

    
 

     
   

    
     

  
   
      
     
    

 
   

 
 

   
     
             

     
        

 
        
     

 
 

• Setback Guidelines: Single and multi-family structures should adhere to established setback 
distances on adjacent lots. Alignment of porches, projecting bays, entryways and other façade 
elements of infill development with adjacent historic structures. 

• Orientation Guidelines: Orient front facades and entrances to the street. Building entrances, 
porches, and landings should have orientations that are consistent with other historic structures 
along the street. 

• Massing and Scale Guidelines: 
o Infill structures should have massing and scale conditions that are compatible with adjacent 

structures on the same block face. 
o Structures should utilize design strategies to reduce the apparent scale of the primary 

façade to blend in with adjacent structures. 
o Corner infill structures should acknowledge prominent locations with appropriate 

transitional or other massing gestures. 
o Infill structures should be elevated a minimum of 21 inches above grade to promote visual 

interest, privacy and consistent building height zones along the street. 
o The height-to-width ratio of an infill structure’s street-facing facade should be compatible 

with and maintain massing proportions established by adjacent historic structures. 
o The height of walls, cornices, roofs, and chimneys on new infill structures should be 

compatible with existing building heights. 
o Infill structures should be no more than one story higher or lower than adjacent buildings. 
o All principal new buildings must have front porches or terraces that extend toward the 

street. 
• Façade Proportion Guidelines: Infill structures that exhibit a minimum level of “diagrammatic 

compatibility” with historic buildings along the street. Façade compositions on infill structures that 
use design strategies to relate to historic façade patterns. 

• Porch Column and Wall Opening Guidelines: Porch column and fenestration patterns that are 
coordinated to reflect a discernible order or regular window-bay definition. Porch column faces that 
are flush with the face of the beam or horizontal structural member above them. Porch columns 
that are appropriately scaled relative to the size of the beam above them. 

• Window Guidelines 
o Windows should have vertical or square proportions. 
o Window design should be based on traditional types with the historic pane configurations. 
o Structures should incorporate window designs as a coordinated ensemble. 
o Windows should be constructed of wood, wood cladding or a synthetic material that 

resembles a traditional wood window. 
o When a simulated divided-lite appearance is used, the muntins (grid/grille) should be 

mounted to the exterior glass. 

Sub-Chapter 4.7.2 Multi-Family Infill: Townhouses 
• Townhouse structures located along a historic block face with up to four units are acceptable. 
• Façades of townhouse structures in historic districts should have massing articulations such as 

window bays, projections, and recesses; a monolithic façade in scale and massing is not acceptable. 
• Fenestration patterns on townhouse structures should have glazing percentages similar to adjacent 

historic structures. 
• Townhouses should be no more than three stories in height. 
• Townhouse structures should be aligned with adjacent building setbacks. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\957 cumberland street (hpb23-076)\957 cumberland street staff report.docx Page 3 



   
 

 
 

      
          

         
       

        
    

   
           

        
      

   
 

 
 

     
 

      
  

ANALYSIS: 

Staff finds that the proposed townhouse building meets the Standards and Design Guidelines in terms of scale, 
massing, orientation, setbacks, fenestration size and alignment, materials, and compatible neo-traditional design. 
The proposed building’s recesses and projections, cohesive mix of architectural features, and varied rooflines due 
to the topography of the site help soften the massing of the building and avoid a monolithic appearance. Each 
unit’s front façade and primary door faces Cumberland Street with an appropriate front porch. Each unit is also 
articulated by traditional architectural features and different but complementary exterior paint palettes. The 
architectural ornamentation and details of the building are a contemporary interpretation of the Craftsman 
Bungalow architectural style widely found within the South Lake Morton Historic District and compatible with the 
historic buildings immediately adjacent to the subject property. The overall height of the building is also consistent 
with the Design Guidelines and compatible with adjacent buildings. Finally, the building setbacks and the location 
of the parking area behind the building are appropriate and consistent with the Design Guidelines. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Final Approval for the proposed new townhouse building as submitted. 

Report prepared by: Emily M. Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\957 cumberland street (hpb23-076)\957 cumberland street staff report.docx Page 4 



Page 1 of 4 
 

597 Cumberland Street Proposed Materials List: 
 
FOUNDATION: PAINTED, SAND FINISH, CEMENTITIOUS 
COATING OVER CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT STEMWALL. 
 
EXTERIOR WALL CLADDING: PAINTED FIBER CEMENT 
HARDIE PLANK LAP SIDING WITH 4” REVEAL. (GABLES: 
PAINTED FIBER CEMENT HARDIE SHINGLE STAGGERED 
EDGE PANEL). 
 

 
 
ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: BRACKETS: PAINTED WOOD; 
PORCH FOUNDATION AND COLUMN BASES: BRICK 
VENEER; PORCH COLUMNS: PAINTED CEMENT FIBER 
HARDIE PANEL AND HARDIE TRIM. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

TRIM: WINDOWS: 3.5" PAINTED HARDIE TRIM; DOORS: 
3.5” PAINTED HARDIE TRIM; CORNER BOARDS: 5.5” 
PAINTED HARDIE TRIM 

 
 
WINDOWS: VINYL, WHITE, SINGLE HUNG & FIXED. SEE 
'WINDOW & DOOR SIZES’ TABLE ON SHEETS A.2.1  
& A.2.2 FOR SIZE AND MUNTIN PATTERNS. 
 

 
MUNTINS: 11/6” WIDE WHITE VINYL SIMULATED 
DIVIDED LITE. 
 
MULLIONS: PAINTED CEMENT FIBER HARDIE TRIM. 
 
DOORS, TRANSOMS & SIDELIGHTS: GLAZED, PAINTED, 
SMOOTH VINYL. SEE ELEVATIONS ON SHEETS A.2.1 & 
A.2.2 FOR CONFIGURATIONS. CRAFTSMAN STYLE. 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

PORCH RAILINGS: 40” HIGH PAINTED WOOD. 
CRAFTSMAN STYLE WITH NOMINAL 2”X2” VERTICAL 
PICKETS. 
 
PORCH COLUMNS: PAINTED CEMENT FIBER HARDIE 
PANEL AND HARDIE TRIM. 

 
 
PORCH FLOORING: CONCRETE SLAB 
 
PORCH SIZES: FRONT  REAR 

UNIT 1 8’0”DX17’8”W 8’0”DX17’8”W 
UNIT 2 8’0”DX17’4”W 12’0”DX11’8”W 
UNIT 3 8’0”DX17’4”W 12’0”DX11’8”W 
UNIT 4 8’0”DX16’4”W 8’0”DX17’8”W 

 
PORCH STEPS: FRONT STEPS: CAST-IN-PLACE 
CONCRETE; REAR STEPS: PAINTED WOOD. SEE PLANS 
& ELEVATIONS FOR CONFIGURATION. 
 
ROOF: DIMENSIONAL ASPHALT FIBERGLASS 
REINFORCED SHINGLES. 
 

 
 
RAFTER TAILS: PAINTED, NOMINAL 2”X6” P.T. WOOD. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
SOFFIT & FASCIA: SOFFIT: PAINTED, BEADBOARD 
FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL; FASCIA: PAINTED 
NOMINAL 2”X6” P.T. WOOD 
 

 



Roof and Siding  
(Real materials may differ slightly in color.)  

  

Primary Colors  
(Sherwin Williams)  

 

  

Trim 
(Sherwin Williams)  

 



Accent Colors 
(Sherwin Williams)  

Shingles 

 

Doors (Unit 1 & 3)     Doors (Unit 2 & 4)

           

Brackets 

 

Porch 

 

 

 

 

 





Historic Preservation Board Design Review 
Photographs of Property’s existing conditions and adjoining properties.  

Aerial View 

 

 

 



Street View 

Vacant land for proposed development. 

 

 



East of proposed development. (959/957 Cumberland St)  

 

West of proposed development. (941 Cumberland St) 

 

 















    
 

 
 

 
  

 
   

      
  

   
   

 
 

  
   

  
   

   
 

 

 
 

        
    

  
 

  
 

    
        

      
               

      
      

 

         
      

       
    

 

      
     

        
    

   
  

 

         
       

     
     

       
     

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
April 27, 2023 

Project # HPB23-077 
Address; Historic Name 716 Mississippi Avenue; “John D. Major House” (CD 1926) 
Owner/Applicant Wes and Michelle Graham 
Project Type Demolition and New Construction 
Historic District; FMSF# South Lake Morton Historic District; #SLM 13-12, 13 
Zoning; Future Land Use; 
Context District; SPI 

RA-4; Residential Medium 
Urban Neighborhood; South Lake Morton SPI 

Existing Use Residential 
Adjacent Properties Residential 
Previous Approvals Entrance Handrail, 12/19/2017 (HPB17-233); Front Façade Addition, 

12/15/2022 (HPB22-206) 

REQUEST 

The Applicants request Final Approval to demolish the subject house, and construct a new house in the design 
and site plan approved for the front façade addition, approved by the Design Review Committee in December 
2022. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property is an interior lot of record (Orange Park, Block A, Portion of Lot 5) consisting of 0.19 acres. 
On this property is a one-story, single-family residence built circa 1925 in the Frame Vernacular architectural style, 
which is a contributing building in the South Lake Morton Historic District. The Frame Vernacular styling of this 
house is expressed by its gabled roof, rectangular plan, double-hung sash wood windows with a one-over-one lite 
configuration, and weatherboard siding. Alterations include modifications to the front porch and small rear 
additions. The subject house has an existing area under roof of 1,499 square feet. 

Historically, the subject property was combined with the adjacent property to its south, 718 Mississippi Avenue. 
In 2010, the subject property was split from 718 Mississippi Avenue. In 2016, the accessory building at the rear of 
716 Mississippi Avenue was re-combined with 718 Mississippi Avenue, as this accessory building was built on the 
shared property line and encroaches into both properties. The Applicants purchased the subject property in 2017. 

In December 2022, approval was obtained for major renovations to the subject house, which included partial 
demolition and front addition. Since this time, the Applicants and their design professional/general contractor 
have been working to finalize the construction and engineering plans for the project. Based on new information 
discovered about the house, as well as the advice from three separate contractors, a local builder, and the City’s 
Building Inspection Division, the Applicants now request a full demolition of the subject house for the following 
reasons: 

• The condition of the house, which has water and termite damage, wood rot, and foundation pier 
deterioration, makes the reuse of existing walls difficult. This was especially concerning to Building 
Inspection, which questioned whether it would be feasible to marry the old wall sections and foundation, 
with the new. In fact, the south wall is literally resting in the dirt. 

• The complexity of a partial demolition versus a full demolition will result in additional time, risk, and cost, 
with only minimal value to the project in keeping a small portion of the structure’s historic fabric. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\716 mississippi avenue (hpb23-077)\716 mississippi avenue staff report.docx Page 1 



    
 

          
    

   
       

   
 

    
      

      
      

    
 

  
   

     
  

      
    

   
    

  
      

 

      
  

 
 

 

    
  

  
 

    
    
  

   
    

   
 

    
   

 

   
 

     
  

      
   

 

• The walls that were originally planned to remain make up only a small portion of the entire structure. All 
other exterior walls, interior walls, flooring, windows, foundation, plumbing, electrical, mechanical and 
the entire roof structure have already been approved to be replaced. 

• The Applicants are committed to maintaining the architectural style and character of this house through 
the previously approved design. 

If demolition is granted approval, the Applicants propose to construct a new house with the same design, materials 
and site plan as approved in December 2022. The house features a cross-gabled roof with a gabled front porch 
supported by paired square columns on plinths and a knee wall. The left (north) side elevation will have a gabled, 
projecting bay, similar to that on the historical structure. The rear elevation will have an integrated back porch. 
Materials for the proposed new structure include: 

Scope Material 
Foundation Concrete slab with elevation appropriate to the design previously presented and 

approved. Splayed foundation walls at front of structure with lapped Hardie siding; 
painted concrete foundation at front porch. 

Exterior Cladding Hardie lap siding; window trim to match existing. 
Windows Vinyl windows with a one-over-one lite configuration. 
Doors Front door will be fiberglass with a Craftsman quarter-lite appearance. 
Roof Asphalt or fiberglass shingles; 6/12 pitch 
Fascia/Soffit Hardie fascia; vinyl soffit 
Porch Hardie wrapped columns, brick finish on column plinths and knee wall 

The site plan for the proposed new house shows building setbacks that comply with the Urban Form Standards in 
the Land Development Code. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land Development 
Code, Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 

The following section of the Land Development Code applies to this project: 
Article 11, Section 6.3.c. Demolition is generally discouraged and shall be reviewed with regards to: 

1. The architectural significance of the building or structure. Architectural significance shall be determined 
by the DRC at the time of the demolition request and shall be based upon documentation of the property’s 
architectural integrity and historical or cultural significance. Designation of the building or structure as 
“non-contributing” by the most recent historic district survey does not preclude the DRC from making a 
determination of architectural significance. 

2. The contribution of the building or structure to the history or origins of the historic district. 
3. The future utilization of the site, including any replacement buildings or structures. 

The following Standards apply to this project: 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, 
features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be differentiated from the 
old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to protect 
the integrity of the property and its environment. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\716 mississippi avenue (hpb23-077)\716 mississippi avenue staff report.docx Page 2 



    
 

 
    

 
 

    
   

   
    

  
       

       
 

  
   

 
  
   
       

   
      
   
   

 
 

 
 

    
    

   
   

       
  

    
   

  
    

 

    

      
     

    
       

    
 

      
       
      

       

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, 
if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 4: Historical Development Patterns and New Construction 
Sub-Chapter 4.6: New Residential/Infill Construction. 

• The scale and massing of the new building, including its fenestration, roof height and shape, and elevation 
should be consistent with surrounding contributing buildings. 

• Building Form – the front façade of buildings should be closely aligned with other buildings on the block 
to maintain a uniform setback; consistent spacing of buildings maintains rhythm of historic neighborhood 
development pattern; the height-to-width ratio of street facing façade should be compatible with 
adjacent buildings. 

• Orientation of new buildings should be toward the primary road and building setbacks should reflect 
traditional siting dimensions. 

• Materials should respect adjacent historic buildings. 
• Details and ornamentation should reflect those of surrounding buildings. 
• Window material, style, size, and trim should be consistent with historic windows and include dimensional 

mullions and exterior muntins, if applicable. 
• Doors should be of an appropriate design reflective of the architectural style of the building. 
• Roof design and details should reflect those of surrounding buildings 
• Colors should complement surrounding buildings. 

ANALYSIS: 

Regarding the considerations for demolition, the subject building is considered a contributing building in the South 
Lake Morton Historic District as it represents the Frame Vernacular architectural style, was built during the 
District’s period of significance, and for its association with the Florida Land Boom historic context in Lakeland. 
The architectural details of this house are relatively simple and common; several similar examples exist in the East 
and South Lake Morton Historic Districts, as well as the Dixieland Historic District. Aside from its historical link to 
the Florida Land Boom, which many homes constructed between 1919 and 1929 share, the house has no known 
associations with persons or events of importance in Lakeland’s history. While the building retains architectural 
integrity, the project as previously approved in December 2022 would remove much of the original historic fabric 
of this house. Staff finds that this building would not be eligible for an individual listing on the National Register 
of Historic Places based on its architectural or historical merits. 

While the Historic Preservation Standards (LDC, Article 11) are silent on financial and economic reasons for 
rehabilitating or demolishing a historic building, the Committee has considered these reasons as additional facts 
for informing their decision in the past. The Applicants’ assessment suggests a building that has been 
compromised by deferred maintenance that would preclude a reasonable effort and expense to repair. 
Additionally, the Applicant has demonstrated good faith in exploring practical solutions for reusing the existing 
house, and is committed to rebuilding a compatibly designed house. Staff finds that the future utilization of the 
site proposes a new single-family house is appropriate and continues the historic use of this property. 

As previously approved, staff finds the neo-traditional style and design of the proposed new house to be 
compatible with the contributing houses adjacent to the subject property and will not adversely affect the 
architectural integrity of the neighborhood or Historic District. Architectural details such as the paired square 
columns and plinths, gabled front porch, splayed foundation walls, and lapped siding convey the Frame Vernacular 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\716 mississippi avenue (hpb23-077)\716 mississippi avenue staff report.docx Page 3 



    
 

    
        

 

     
   

 
 

 

   
 

        
   

     
  

  
  

   
 
 

       
  

style and are consistent with the Design Guidelines. Staff also finds that the proposed building’s scale and massing, 
as well as materials, are consistent with residences in the Lake Morton neighborhood and the Design Guidelines. 

Finally, the proposed placement of the house on the lot is consistent with the Design Guidelines and Urban Form 
Standards in terms of orientation, building setbacks, foundation height, and porch depth. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Final Approval of the request with the following conditions: 

1. New siding must match the exposure dimension of the original siding. All trim and casing should be similar 
to that of the historic structure and include corner boards and frieze boards. 

2. Windows must be recessed to provide a shadow line and not installed flush to the exterior wall surface. 
Windows also must include historically appropriate trim, including header, sill, and apron. 

3. Ensure that the front porch columns are properly aligned with the entablature beam, and that a frieze 
board of appropriate width covers the entablature beam. 

4. Front door must feature full-lite, half-lite, or quarter-lite glazing. 

Report prepared by: Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2023\04.27.23\716 mississippi avenue (hpb23-077)\716 mississippi avenue staff report.docx Page 4 



           
            
              
   

 

       

 
  

    

Figure 1 was submitted and approved during the December 2022 Historic Board meeting. For 
clearer visibility, we added red lines, depicting the North and South side wall portions that are in 
question. Figure 2 is the same drawing, with a depiction of only the remaining walls, not 
currently approved for removal. 

Figure 1 Figure 2 



            
            

      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  gure 3

Figure 3 was also submitted and approved during the December 2022 Historic Board meeting. 
For clearer visibility, we also added red lines, depicting the North and South side walls, not 
currently approved for removal. 

Fi 



G
R

AH
AM

   
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 

EXISTING REAR IMAGE 

OVERLAY REFERENCE PLAN 
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" 

EXISTING FRONT IMAGE 

EXISTING LEFT IMAGE 

DEMOLITION PLAN 
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" 

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
  P

LA
N

 

AutoCAD SHX Text
D1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO REAR PORTION COMPLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO REAR PORTION COMPLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO REAR PORTION



G
R

AH
AM

   
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
, D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

, &
  G

EN
ER

AL
 N

O
TE

S 

2020  SQ.FT 

408  SQ.FT 

2428  SQ.FT 

BUILDING DATA: 

FLOOR PLAN DIMENSIONED  PLAN 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
W / D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
- THIS JOB CONSISTS OF AN INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR REMODEL TO AN EXISTING HOME. - ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT FLORIDA    BUILDING, PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, AND THE NATIONAL    ELECTRIC CODE - IT IS INTENT THAT ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE ADOPTED    CODES, STANDARDS & RULES OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY     HAVING JURISDICTION - FLOOR COVERING, FURNISHINGS, PAINT COLORS, TRIM MATERIALS,    AND OTHER ITEMS NOT SPECIFIED IN THESE SECTIONS ARE TO BE    AS SELECTED BY OWNER IN CONFORMANCE TO ALL    APPLICABLE CODES. - CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND    DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. - ANY CHANGES TO THESE PLANS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE    DESIGN ENGINEER AND THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT PRIOR    TO CONSTRUCTION. - THE CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND BUILDING    SETBACKS, AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE DESIGN    ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. - THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SEWER AND WATER    CONNECTIONS AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED PER DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW INTERIOR STUD WALL: 2x4 WOOD STUDS @ 16" O.C.  1/2" GWB FOR ALL INTERIOR WALL SURFACES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. BED, TAPE AND SAND ALL JOINTS AND FASTENERS. AT EXTERIOR WALLS, ADD 3/4" RIGID INSULATION AND FURRING WITH DRYWALL FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALL TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAUNDRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-0 CLG

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLYWOOD WALL UNDER GYPSUM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-0x2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH DOOR HT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-0x5-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR WOOD STUD WALL. SEE SECTION SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX FLAT CLG HT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POTSHELF ABV

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULTED CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-6x3-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLWORK EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATHEDRAL CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC



G
R

AH
AM

   
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 

TYP INTERMEDIATE FOOTER TYP STEMWALL DETAIL 
SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

ROOF  PLAN 
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0" 

FLOOR FRAMING PLAN FOUNDATION PLAN 
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" FO

U
N

D
AT

IO
N

, F
LO

O
R

  F
R

AM
IN

G
 &

 R
O

O
F 

 P
LA

N
S 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W / D

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIRDER TRUSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD ADDITIONAL SUPPORT BELOW KITCHEN APPLIANCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FLOOR SYSTEM TO REMAIN. REPLACED DAMAGED MATERIAL AND PIERS AS NEEDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW STEM WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW STEM WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW STEM WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW STEM WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AND REPLACE ALL EXISTING PIERS WITH NEW PIERS. SEE DETAIL SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT BEAM. SEE SECTION SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PIER SECTION "A" ON DETAIL SHEET FOR PIER AND FOOTER INFO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GUTTERS AND DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GUTTERS AND DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GUTTERS AND DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GUTTERS AND DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GUTTERS AND DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE ADD'L SUPPORT BELOW HVAC UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT 2x8 CONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR JOISTS SEE FRAMING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE TREATED BOTTOM PLATE & 1/2" J-BOLTS X 8" LONG @ 24" O.C.   (USE 2"  WASHERS - SEE J-BOLT NOTE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CMU STEMWALL WITH #5 REBAR @ 8' O.C. IN POURED FULL CELL  & AT CORNERS DOWEL TO BENT INTO SLAB 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"x32"x16" DEEP CONC PAD W/ #5's @ 8" O.C.E.W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8x16 CMU POURED SOLID W/ CONC AND (1) #5 VERTICAL EACH PIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUS 28 HANGER (OR EQUAL) AT SPAN CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DBL PT 2x12 BEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
POURED TOP COURSE W/ (1) #1 CONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT 2x8 JOISTS @ 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" t/g DECKING GLUED AND NAILED W/ 10d NAILS 12" O.C. INTERIOR 6" O.C. PERIMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEMWALL NOTE:  STEMWALL HEIGHT TO BE DETERMINED PER THE OWNER & CONTRACTOR TO FIT THE SITE (MAX 4 COURSES IN HEIGHT - IF MORE THAN 4 COURSES ARE NEEDED - CONTACT ENGINEER PRIOR TO FOUNDATION POUR).

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DEEP X 16" WIDE FOOTING WITH  (2) -#5 REBAR X CONT.  (PLACE (2)-#5 L-BARS WITH 30" LEGS AT ALL CORNERS).  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DBL PT 2x8 BEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTER BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD LATTICE BETWEEN AT LOCATIONS WHERE STEMWALLS ARENT CONSTRUCTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEM WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEM WALL



G
R

AH
AM

  
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 

LEFT ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

RIGHT ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

EX
TE

R
IO

R
  E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHINGLE ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED CMU

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU LOW WALL AT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE GABLE TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL/ROOF BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE (NON-TAPERED) COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLAYED SIDING AT LOWER EDGE BACK TO BUILDOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLAYED SIDING AT LOWER EDGE BACK TO STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDI-SIDING AND TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL SOFFIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK PORCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK PORCH 



G
R

AH
AM

   
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 

INTERIOR ELEVATIONEA SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

EB 

REF PLAN

E
A

 

XX
XX

XX
XX

XX
XX

 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/IN CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNERS BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF 8-0 CLG BEYOND AT DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
POTSHELF



G
R

AH
AM

   
R

ES
ID

EN
CE

 
71

6 
 M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
  A

VE
N

UE
 

LA
KE

LA
N

D
, F

LO
RI

D
A 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R
S

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
N

T
S

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 

LIGHTING PLAN 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

SYMBOL SCHEDULE

ELEC RISER 

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
 P

O
W

ER
 A

N
D

 L
IG

H
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMODEL & ADDITION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-23-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box  753, Polk City Fl  33868

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: 863.660.6827

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.platcompanies.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH. PROVIDE LIGHT W/ PULL SWITCH AND RECEPTACLE AT TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uNOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROVIDE AND INSTALL GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT-INTERUPTERS (GFI) GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT-INTERUPTERS (GFI)  (GFI) AS REQUIRED BY THE CURRENT NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE (NEC) AND MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL GOVERNING CODES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROVIDE AND INSTALL LOCALLY CERTIFIED SMOKE DETECTORS AS SMOKE DETECTORS AS  AS REQUIRED BY NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION (NFPA) AND MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL GOVERNING CODES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESS CAN LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNCTION BOX.   OWNER TO SPECIFY FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
110 VOLT ELEC OUTLET  

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ COUNTER TOP LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
110 VOLT ELEC. OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" AFF TO BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING EXHAUST FAN  

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND FAULT INTERRUPTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOKE/CARBON DETECTOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEILING FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
220

AutoCAD SHX Text
POP UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 60" AFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 60" AFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANKLESS W/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GFI W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP GFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERIFY W/ OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERIFY W/ OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 80" AFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL NETWORK CABLES TO THIS LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/USB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTIC HATCH. PROVIDE LIGHT W/ PULL SWITCH AND RECEPTACLE AT TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
110 VOLT ELEC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CITY ATTACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
W ALUM RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/2" SCH 40 PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2-5/8" GROUND RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE D RECESSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN PANEL 200 AMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTD. PANEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(42 CIRCUITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 6' APART)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3)  ALL WIRING TO NATIONAL AND LOCAL CODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2)  ALL WIRE SHALL BE COPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1)   ALL PIPE TO BE EMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uELECTRICAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4)  PER CURRENT NEC CODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ELEC METER LOCATION






	HPB Agenda
	DRC Agenda
	HPB23-066, 601 E Charles St
	HPB23-076, 957 Cumberland St
	HPB23-077, 716 Mississippi Av



